
www.eden.gov.uk Matthew Neal
Deputy Chief Executive

Date: 6 February 2019

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF
Tel: 01768 817817
Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam

Communities Portfolio Holder Meeting Agenda - 14 February 2019
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Communities Portfolio Holder Meeting will be 
held at 9.30 am on Thursday, 14 February 2019 at the Deputy Director Technical Services 
Office, Mansion House, Penrith.

1  Declarations of Interest  

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary interests and any other registrable interests, in any matter to 
be considered or being considered.

2  Leisure Grant Fund  (Pages 3 - 8)

To consider report TES10/19 from the Deputy Director Technical Services which 
enable consideration to be given to an application for financial assistance.

RECOMMENDATION That the grant application attached as Appendix A be 
approved.

3  Carry Forward of Revenue Budget  (Pages 9 - 14)

To consider report G17/19 from the Deputy Chief Executive which seeks the 
Portfolio Holder’s support for the carry forward of  2018-2019 budgets into 2019-
2020.

RECOMMENDATION that the revenue budgets set out in Appendix 1 be rolled 
forward into 2019-2020.

Yours faithfully

M Neal
Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer)

Democratic Services Contact: 



www.eden.gov.uk 2

Please Note: Access to the internet in the Council Chamber and Committee room is 
available via the guest wi-fi – no password is required

Encs

For Attention
All members of the Council

Chairman – Councillor 
Vice Chairman – Councillor 

Councillors
E Martin, Conservative Group

Standing Deputies



Report No: TES10/19  
Eden District Council

Communities Portfolio
14 February 2019

Leisure Grant Fund

Portfolio: Communities

Report from: Deputy Director Technical Services

Wards: All Wards

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1 Purpose
1.1 To enable consideration to be given to an application for financial assistance.

2 Recommendation
That the grant application attached as Appendix A be approved.

3 Report Details
3.1 The Council has a policy for awarding Leisure Grants to organisations and 

individuals.  This report outlines a request for funding that has been received 
by the Council. 

3.2 Eligibility for the award of financial assistance for individuals applying for a 
grant requires the applicant to be participating at a national level or beyond in 
their chosen sport.  The applicant is required to provide written confirmation 
from the sport’s national governing body confirming their participation at 
national level.  The Leisure Grant Fund does not support applications which 
are retrospective.  

3.3 Grant applications will be considered against the terms and conditions for 
Leisure Fund Grant (Support for Individuals). 

3.4 The maximum grant limits have been amended over time to respond to 
fluctuating grant budget levels.  It was agreed at the Communities Portfolio 
Meeting, Report CD99/14, 20 November 2014, Minute COM_10_11_14, that 
the maximum grant limit for Grants to individuals will normally be paid up to 
25% of the expenditure which is eligible and in any event will not exceed 
£400.   It was also agreed that the maximum grant to organisations is £700.

3.5 The following application for financial support has been received.  The table 
recommends the level of funding.  The full details of the application are given 
in Appendices to this report. 

Page  3

Agenda Item 2



Appendix Applicant Grant Project Amount 
requested

Overall 
Scheme 
cost

Recommended 
support

A A Leisure 
Grant 
Fund 
Individuals

National and 
English 
Trampoline 
Championships

£95.00 £380.00 £95.00

4 Policy Framework
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are:

 Decent Homes for All;
 Strong Economy, Rich Environment;
 Thriving Communities; and
 Quality Council

4.2 This report meets the Thriving Communities corporate priority
4.3 This report addresses TC5a: Administer community grants strategic action in 

the Council Plan
4.4 This report helps to meet the Leisure Grant Fund adopted policy of the 

Council.

5 Consultation
5.1 No consultation has been undertaken in the preparation of this report.

6 Implications
6.1 Financial and Resources
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 

must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2015-19 as agreed at Council on 17 September 2015.

6.1.2 The annual budget for the Leisure Grant Fund for 2018/19 is £4,240.00.  The 
uncommitted balance ahead of this meeting is £3,370.77

6.1.3 The Council is in receipt of one application, applicant A who’s child is 
requesting a grant of £95.00

6.1.4 If the grant is determined, as recommended, this will leave a remaining 
balance of £3,275.77 within the Leisure Grant Fund.

6.2 Legal
6.2.1 Grants awarded by the Council from its Leisure Grant Fund are discretionary.  

Any award will be subject to conditions relating to the proper and effective use 
of the grant for the approved purpose. 

6.3 Human Resources
6.3.1 There are no Human Resources issues associated with this report.

Page  4



6.4 Statutory Considerations

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address:

Equality and Diversity There are no equality and diversity issues 
associated with this report.

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact

The provision of leisure grants has a direct 
benefit on the health and wellbeing of the 
individual or organisation.

Crime and Disorder There are no crime and disorder issues 
associated with this report.

Children and 
Safeguarding

There are no children or safeguarding issues 
associated with this report.

6.5 Risk Management

Risk Consequence Controls Required
That there is 
insufficient monitoring 
of paid grants. 

The grants are not used 
for their intended 
purpose.

Grants managed in 
accordance with the 
agreed terms and 
conditions of grant.  
Grants are not paid 
until the project is 
complete and evidence 
is provided by the 
applicant including 
submission of the 
Grant Claim form and 
accompanying invoices 
or receipts. 

7 Other Options Considered
7.1 There have been no other options considered as the recommendation 

proposed is in accordance with the established terms and conditions of the 
Leisure Fund Grant.

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation
8.1 The application received from Applicant A, on behalf of their child, is 

recommended for support because the applicant’s child is competing at a 
national level within their chosen sport.  

Tracking Information

Governance Check Date Considered
Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 5 February 2019

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 5 February 2019

Page  5



Relevant Assistant Director 5 February 2019

Background Papers: Leisure Grant Fund File (available from Leisure and 
Communities Team Office, Mansion House)

Appendices: Appendix A - Grant Application
Contact Officer: Doug Huggon, Leisure & Community Services 

Manager

Page  6



Appendix A

Applicant A

Project details

          Applicant A is requesting financial assistance on behalf of their 11 year child, 
who resides in Eden, to support their involvement in the sport of rhythmic 
gymnastics.

The child has been a member of Penrith Gymnastic Club since the squad began 
five years ago and has competed in National Competitions, at Edinburgh, 
Birmingham and Stoke.  The squad are hoping to build on their success in 2019.

The child has been selected to participate in the Control Competition and 
Development Workshop at Aberdeen, where they will compete both individually 
and with the squad in the disciplines of hoop, ball, clubs, ribbon and rope.

An Application has been made by the parent to subsidise the cost of:

British gymnastics membership £41.00
Competition fees £20.00
Leotard hire £10.00
Hotel £149.00
Fuel £100.00
Meals £60.00
Total £380.00

      Amount requested from Eden:  £95.00

Page  7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: G17/19
Eden District Council

Communities Portfolio
14 February 2019

Carry Forward of Revenue Budget
Portfolio: Communities

Report from: Deputy Chief Executive 

Wards: All Wards

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1 Purpose
1.1 To seek the Portfolio Holder’s support for the carry forward of  2018-2019 budgets into 

2019-2020.

2 Recommendation
That the revenue budgets set out in Appendix 1 be rolled forward into 2019-2020.

3 Report Details
3.1 Budgets are managed and monitored at regular intervals throughout the year to 

ensure spend is controlled. There are instances, for various reasons, where officers 
will need to make requests to the Portfolio Holders for approval for budgets to be 
carried forward to the next financial year.

3.2 Appendix 1 to this report provides details of the budgets and reasons for which the 
carry forward requests are made.

4 Policy Framework
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are:

 Decent Homes for All;

 Strong Economy, Rich Environment;

 Thriving Communities; and

 Quality Council
4.2 The Council’s budgets form a major part of the Council’s Policy Framework.  There are 

no relevant applicable policies relating to the carry forward of underspent budgets, 
however the proposals within this report will contribute to the Quality Council corporate 
priority. 

5 Consultation
5.1 Not applicable.

6 Implications
6.1 Financial and Resources
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be 

made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 
2015-2019 as agreed at Council on 17 September 2015.

Page  9

Agenda Item 3



6.1.2 This report sets requests for a carry forward of revenue budgets from 2018-2019 into 
2019 - 2020.  The increased budgets in 2019-2020 will be funded from a 
corresponding underspend in 2018-2019.  The recommended carry forwards agreed 
by Portfolio Holders will be included in a report to the Executive on 2 April 2019 when 
all carry forwards will be collated for consideration.

6.2 Legal
6.2.1 There are no Legal implications arising from the report.
6.3 Human Resources
6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising from the report.
6.4 Statutory Considerations

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address:

Equality and Diversity There are no equality issues arising out of this 
report.

Health, Social Environmental 
and Economic Impact

The request for roll forwards within the report are 
intended to have a positive impact in terms of 
health, social cohesion and the Eden economy.

Crime and Disorder There are no crime and disorder implications 
arising from this report.

Children and Safeguarding There are no child protection implications arising 
from this report.

6.5 Risk Management

Risk Consequence Controls Required
Carry forward of budget 
is not agreed.

Actions within the Portfolio 
Plan may not be delivered. 

Provision of suitable 
reasoning for rationale for 
carry forward of revenue 
budget.

7 Other Options Considered
7.1 The alternative would be not to carry forward the budgets.  This would is not advised 

as it would :

 be detrimental  to the devolution project as there would be less funding 
available to enable CALC to  assist in the project

 result in no  allocated funding for the roof replacement project at Penrith 
Leisure Centre; and

 result in less funding for the Armed Forces Community Support Project. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation
8.1 To meet the plans and programmes in the Communities Portfolio Plan.

Tracking Information
Governance Check Date Considered

Page  10



Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 5 February 2019

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 31 January 2019

Relevant Deputy Director

Background Papers: None
Appendices: Appendix 1- Roll Forward Requests 2019-2020
Contact Officer: Mr M Neal, Deputy Chief Executive

Direct Dial 01768 212237

Page  11



Appendix 1

Select Cost Centre Code 
from drop down 01124

Ledger Code Description CALC 2H

Service
Community Development & 
Engagement

Portfolio Communities Portfolio

Executive Member Cllr Martin 

Ledger Code Detail description
Annual 

Budget*
Current 
Spend*

Roll Fwd 
Amount

01124-2079 Grants and contribut 8,290 3,698 4,592

#N/A #N/A #N/A 0

#N/A #N/A #N/A 0

4,592

Has this been rolled forward previously? Yes

Description of Roll Forward

Prepared By

Authorised By (AD or above)

Assistance by CALC with the devolution project

Neil Buck

Revenue Budget Roll-Forward from 2018-2019 to 2019-2020

Total to be Rolled Forward

Jane Langston

The following steps have been taken to ensure it is delivered in the next financial year…..

The budget is to assist with devolution and the project is ongoing into 2022. At the end of each year remaining 
monies are rolled forward to make them available for the following year.

Page  12



Select Cost Centre Code 
from drop down 02097

Ledger Code Description Penrith Leisure Centre

Service
Eden Leisure Centre & Appleby 
Swimming P

Portfolio Communities Portfolio

Executive Member Cllr Martin 

Ledger Code Detail description
Annual 

Budget*
Current 
Spend*

Roll Fwd 
Amount

02097-1101 BldngMaintnceLeisure 38,830 15,818 23,012

#N/A #N/A #N/A 0

#N/A #N/A #N/A 0

23,012

Has this been rolled forward previously? No

Description of Roll Forward

Prepared By

Authorised By (AD or above)

Works to the Penrith Leisure Centre roof have been delayed due to bad weather when the works were 
programmed in, this funding was allocated to works required inside following the roof works 

Doug Huggon

Revenue Budget Roll-Forward from 2018-2019 to 2019-2020

Total to be Rolled Forward

Jane Langston

The works to the roof have been ordered and will be completed when the company can reprogramme

The service/activity could not be completed in year due to inclement weather for contractor when due to do work 
on roof, following works cant be undertaken until roof sorted.

Page  13



Select Cost Centre Code 
from drop down 02406

Ledger Code Description
Armed Forces Community 
Support

Service
Community Development & 
Engagement

Portfolio Communities Portfolio

Executive Member Cllr Martin 

Ledger Code Detail description
Annual 

Budget*
Current 
Spend*

Roll Fwd 
Amount

#N/A #N/A #N/A 0

#N/A #N/A #N/A 0

#N/A #N/A #N/A 0

02046-2079 Grants and Contributions 5,000 0 5,000

Has this been rolled forward previously? No

Description of Roll Forward

Prepared By

Authorised By (AD or above)

The match funding for the project has not been confirmed, it is unlikely that the position will be filled before the end 
of this financial year, therefore this years funding will need to be rolled forward to next.

Doug Huggon

Revenue Budget Roll-Forward from 2018-2019 to 2019-2020

Total to be Rolled Forward

Jane Langston

The project is going ahead it has just been delayed until all funding is in place

The project is a partnership, until all funding is in place the project can not go ahead, Grant fund was due to be 
announced in January and has been delayed.

Page  14


	Agenda
	2 Leisure Grant Fund
	3 Carry Forward of Revenue Budget

